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A HISTORY OF THE INGERSOLL LIBRARY

Prior to 1890, Ingersoll had two libraries. One was a small rental library, the other, the Mechanics library.
In 1890, the two merged. This resulted in a public library with a small charge. There were 5,000 books
available for use. It was located first on King St. E. In 1899, it moved to the Royal Block on Thames St.,
where more room was available. Mrs. Court was the librarian for years. In 1909, the town council took
advantage of a very generous offer for municipal libraries, made by an American millionaire, Andrew
Carnegie. The council appointed the following gentlemen as the first Carnegie Library Committee: J. L.
Patterson, chairman (occupation, lawyer and magistrate); William Briden, secretary; R. J. Robertson, town
treasurer; Walter Mills, contractor; S. M. Fleet; J. G. Gibson, lawyer and to represent the council; Mayor
George Sutherland. This committee submitted plans and conditions to Mr. Carnegie which were
satisfactory to receive the grant. The committee selected a site east of the Merchant's Bank on Charles
Street, which was purchased from the bank. Mr. F. J. Ure was secured as surveyor and staked the site. In
June 1909, the committee called for tenders for the building. The tender of James Coulter, Woodstock
was accepted. Work started in the fall of the year and the building was completed and transferred to the
committee on May 28, 1910. The town paid $1,000. for the site. The building when completed with
heating plant, lighting, and shelving cost $9,000. The Merchant's Bank made a verbal agreement with the
committee not to erect a building between the bank and library. There was a free reading room, where
current daily and weekly papers, monthly magazines and illustrated publications were on the tables or in
the files. It was open from 2 p.m. till 6 p.m. and from 7 till 9:30 p.m. each weekday. The annual expenditure
was about $800 and the privileges of the entire institution were available to any responsible citizen free
of cost except five cents for the catalogue.

excerpt from Ingersoll: our heritage by Harry Whitwell


http://www.ocl.net/genealogy/ingersollheritage.shtml
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History of the Ingersoll libraries 1855-1890

By Rosemary Lewis and
Ken Moyer

EARLIEST ACCOUNT OF THE
INGERSOLL LIBRARY 1855

It is unclear when a library was
first established in the community
of Ingersoll. A library was in exist-
ence in the village by 1855: an
editorial in the Ingersoll Chronicle
of February 23, 1855: praised the
Ingersoll Public Library, located in
the Common School on Thames
Street South (near the location of
Victory Memorial School), for its
collection of some 700 volumes,
"and this entirely free to any inhab-
itant of Ingersoll". The "obliging
librarian" was Mr. Barker.

In 1861, the library was still part
of the school. In a list of accounts
paid by the School Board January
14 (reported in the Chronicle of
February 3, 1861) is "D. Paine
Librarian’s salary...24.00".

In the Ingersoll Chronicle of
January 17, 1862, in a report of a

School Board meeting we read:
"On motion Mr. Joseph Barker was
reappointed librarian." By 1868,
Mr. Barker was being paid $13.00

every six months (Ingersoll Chron-
icle January 16, 1868).

FORMATION OF MECHANICS’
INSTITUTE 1866/1871

The Ingersoll Chronicle of De-
cember 6, 1866 announced a meet-
ing in the council chambers "of
persons interested in the formation
of a Mechanics’ Institute". This
meeting was held on Friday, De-
cember 7, 1866 (reported in the
Chronicle December 13, 1866) and
a further meeting on December 19,
1866 was planned.

It seems that a Mechanics’ Insti-
tute was not actually formed at that
time. Four years later, in the Chro-
nicle of January 12, 1871, we read:

"A meeting of the subscribers of
the fund to establish a Mechanics’
Institute in this town will be held in
the building known as Jarvis Hall
(now occupied by the Good Temp-

lars), on tomorrow (Friday) even-

ing at half-past seven". The Chron- .

icle of February 2, 1871 records a
public meeting (date, place) to
organize the Institute.

The Ingersoll Chronicle of Octo-
ber 5, 1871 records the annual
meeting of the Mechanics’ Institute
"held in the reading room". The
officers elected were President C.
E. Chadwick, Vice President Dr.
Williams, and Secretary & Librar-
ian Joseph Fox.

From this report we know that the
Ingersoll Mechanics’ Institute, like
most Mechanics’ Institutes in
Ontario, had a library with a read-
ing room and a librarian.

TWO LIBRARIES 1871

The establishment of the Mechan-
ics’ Institute meant that there were
two libraries in Ingersoll in 1871.
Almost immediately, there was a
recommendation that they be
brought together. A report of a
School Board meeting in the Inger-
soll Chronicle of Thursday, Sep-

tember 14, 1871, states "that the
committee appointed to examine the
state of the library, reported recom-
mending that it should be placed in
charge of the Mechanics’ Institute
Librarian".

This same report indicates that the
public library was still under the
Jjurisdiction of the School Board and
names Mr. Barker as librarian.
This library is mentioned in the
Oxford Gazetteer 1870-71 (p158) in
the description of the town of
Ingersoll: "a public library of a
1000 volumes". We do not know
whether this library was still
located in the school (which had by
this time become the Union
School).

At the meeting, Mr. Barker vig-
orously opposed the combining of
the two libraries. The Chronicle
(September 14, 1871) states: "Mr.
Barker did not think it was in the
power of the Board to place it out
of the charge of the Board in that
way"; "Mr. Barker -- We could not
amalgamate our library with that of

the Mechanics’ Institute".

ONE LIBRARY 1871
Nevertheless, the School Board

decided to place the public library

"in charge of the Mechanics’ Insti-

tute Librarian" (Ingersoll Chronicle
Thursday, September 14, 1871).

FIRE WIPED OUT LIBRARY
1872

Only a few months after the
libraries were united, on May 7,
1872, fire struck the town of Inger-
soll. "The Mechanics’ Institute lost
their entire library and furniture
valued at $500. as well as the town
library which was placed in their
charge -- no insurance” (Ingersoll
Chronicle May 25, 1872). In the
May 30 edition the town library
loss is given as "$300. - no insur-
ance".

Because of the reports of the fire,
we know that the Mechanics’ Insti-
tute had been on Thames Street, in
a building owned by W. McMillan,

(Continued on Page 15)




(Continued from Page 14)

and which was also occupied by
J.G. Chown, hardware (London
Free Press September 13, 1952
reprint of article on the Ingersoll
fire of 1872). This building is on
the east side of Thames Street,
where the Ingersoll Department
Store Annex is today.

This fire was a disaster for library
service in Ingersoll: not until 1880
was a library re-established.

1870s PUBLIC SUPPORT FOR
RE-ESTABLISHING A
LIBRARY

In the Chronicle of June 22, 1876
a letter to the editor from
"SHELL" indicates public support
for re-establishing a library: "I
observe that there is a subscription
list on foot in town for the purpose
of raising funds to provide books,
etc. for a free library or Mechan-
ics’ Institute". This writer sug-
gested: "instead of attempting to set
on foot an enterprise which, from

its reliance upon casual voluntary
subscriptions, would inevitably be a
failure... that the mater should be
thoroughly ventilated to ascertain
whether the sense of the ratepayers
is not in favor of an appropriation
from the revenue of the town...".
A shrewd observation in the light
of subsequent developments.

The Chronicle of April 11, 1878
reports a meeting on April 9 in the
Council Chambers to re-establish a
Mechanics’ Institute. A committee
was set up consisting of Joseph
Gibson, W.K. Sumner, M. Min-
kler, W.H. Root, and Thomas
Hovenden.

In the Ingersoll Chronicle of July
4, 1878 all those interested in a
Mechanics’ Institute were invited to
a meeting in the Council Chambers
on July 11.

RE-ESTABLISHMENT OF ME-

CHANICS’ INSTITUTE 1880
The first page of the minute book

of the Mechanics’ Institute records

a public meeting in the Council
Chamber November 12, 1880 at
which the Mechanics’ Institute was
formed. At the next meeting, Dece-
mber 7, 1880, the Ingersoll Mech-
anics’ Institute had received a grant
of $400. from the Province of
Ontario. In June of 1881, the Town
Council granted the Institute $100.
(Ingersoll Chronicle June 9, 1881).

The library was located in two
rooms rented at $50. per year from
Mr. Gumett, publisher of the In-
gersoll Chronicle (minutes of Dec-
ember 9, 1880). The rooms were
“the second flat of the Chronicle
building", located where the Senti-
nel-Review offices are now, and
were expected to be ready "shortly"
(Ingersoll Chronicle December 16,
1880). Mr. Adkins was appointed
librarian at a salary of $50. per
annum (minutes of December 9,
1880).

The library opened in this loca-
tion sometime early in 1881. From
March 1, 1881, the minute book
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Earliest account of the library 1855

gives the location of meetings as
"Ingersoll Mechanics’ Institute
rooms".

MECHANICS’ INSTITUTE
LIBRARIANS 1880s

From the minute book of the
Mechanics’ Institute, we know that

Mr. James Adkins was the librarian
from 1880-1882, when he became

ill. From 1882-1887, the librarian
was Mr. Richard Grigg.

1880s; FINANCIAL STRUGGLE

The minute book of the Mechan-
ics’ Institute indicates a struggle to
raise funds and pay the bills throug-
hout the years from 1880 to 1888.
The library was supported by sub-
scriptions, set at "one dollar over"
at the first meeting in 1880, and by
fundraising from entertainments,
concerts, trips, and classes.

In the midst of this effort, the
library was without a librarian: the
minutes of July 7, 1887 read: "The
Librarian, R. Grigg having gone to

England... the Vice-Pres. and the
Secretary be authorized to make
what arrangements they think best
for filling the position of librarian".
A librarian was not hired until
1889.

BRANCH LIBRARY IN
COLLEGIATE INSTITUTE

In the minutes of October 1,
1884, the Mechanics’ Institute
established a branch library in the
high school, "in charge of the Head
Master", for which the school was
to pay $40. per year to the Mecha-
nics’ Institute. That these books
were still at the school in 1889 is
indicated by the minutes for June
17, 1889, in which the Library
Committee recommended "that the:
books belonging to the Mech. Inst.
now in the Coll. Inst. be catalogued
and marked with an asterisk in the
new catalogue”.

(Continued on Page 17)




1888 A Free library becomes a possibility

(Continued from Page 15)

In the Mechanics’ Institute min-
utes of October 24, 1888, we read
of a possible solution to the money
problems: The W.C.T.U. (Wo-
men’s Christian Temperance
Union) proposed, not for the first
time, the establishment of a free
reading room. "After considerable
discussion as to the feasibility of
the scheme, it was moved by J.
Gibson seconded by C. H. Slawson
and resolved that the president be
requested to ascertain if the law
provides for the levying of a rate of

half a mill on the dollar on the
taxable property of the town for the
purpose of establishing a free
library and reading room, and if
so, that the proper steps be taken to
submit a by-law to the rate-payers
with that object in view...". In fact,
the Free Libraries Act had been
passed by the Ontario Legislature
in 1882.

| With the discovery that property
taxes could be used to support a

free library, things began to move
quickly. In June 1889, William
Johnston was appointed "caretaker
and librarian" at a salary of $150.
per year (from the minutes of June
10, 1889).

The Ingersoll Chronicle and

Canadian Dairyman of November
21, 1889) reports that "a petition
signed by 206 ratepayers for a by-
law establishing a free library and
reading room as laid before the
council”. The December 5, 1889
issue announced that this by-law

would be voted upon "in the
coming municipal elections”, and
was expected to carry.

Results of the vote were reported
in the January 9, 1890 issue: 486
for the free library, 187 against.

1890 MECHANICS’ INSTITUTE
BECOMES A FREE LIBRARY

By March, the Free Library
Board had been formed. The March
13, 1890 Ingersoll Chronicle and
Canadian Dairyman reports: "The
Mechanics’ Institute having been
merged into a free library, the

directors of the Institute met on
Tuesday evening last (i.e. March
11) and wound up the business in
connection therewith." The board
then adjourned, and "a meeting of
the Free Library Board was then
held with all members being pres-
ent but Mayor Buchanan. "

The members of the Free Library
Board who were at this meeting
were listed in the minutes of March
11, 1890: H. F. McDiarmid, H.
Richardson, L. C. Menhennick, J.
Sinclair, G. O’Callaghan, M. J.
McDermott, J. McKay, and W.
Briden.

The Board decided "that all books
now out be called in by the librar-
ian, and held until new regulations
are issued". The minutes of this
meeting .show that the Mechanics’
Institute passed a balance of $6.20
to the Free Library.

The Ingersoll Chronicle and
Canadian Dairyman of March 27,
1890 reports that the Free Library
Board decided to "ask the council
for a grant of 3/8 of a mill on real
and personal property of the town

instead of the $454.00 as previous-
ly decided upon”.

The April 10, 1890 Ingersoll
Chronicle and Canadian Dairyman
reported that "The by-law to legal-
ize transfer of the Mechanics’
Institute and library to the town
was read a third time and finally
passed.”

OPEN TO THE PUBLIC :

The minutes of March 18, 1890
state: "The Reference and Circulat-
ing Library and the Reading Room
shall be open every week day from
2 to 6 and 7 to 10 p.m...".

The Thursday, April 17, 1890
Ingersoll Chronicle and Canadian
Dairyman announced on the front
page that: "Persons desiring books
from the free library can procure
forms of application and cards from
the librarian on Saturday and any
subsequent days, but books will not
be issued before May 1. Donations
of books to the Free Library, will
be gladly received by the Board.
The following have been received
this week: -- Thiers’ History of the
French Revolution, presented by

Geo. Johnston; Proctor’s Pictures
on Astronomy, presented by Wm.
Johnston".

The librarian’s report from the
minutes of the Free Library, April
29, 1890, gives the number of
books in the library: 1580 on the
shelves and 98 not yet returned, for
a total of 1678 volumes. At this
same meeting, the Board discussed
"rearranging the furniture in the
rooms and making them more
attractive”, in preparation for open-
ing to the public.

LIBRARIANS
?7... 1855-1860 Mr. Joseph Barker
Ingersoll Public Library

1861 D. Paine
Ingersoll Public Library

1862-1871 Mr. Joseph Barker
Ingersoll Public Library

1871 Mr. Joseph Fox
Mechanics’ Institute

1880-1882 Mr. James Adkins
Mechanics’ Institute
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Original unused proposed plans
for the 1909
Ingersoll Library
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